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Empirica 
PO Box 524 
FORTITUDE VALLEY  QLD  4006 
 
Attention: Matthew Volk 
Email:  MVolk@empirica.com.au 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 

RE:  PRESTONS SHOPPING CENTRE 
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
1. As requested, we are writing to respond to matters raised by Liverpool City 

Council in correspondence dated 14 March 2013 in relation to the above 
development.  We have previously prepared a traffic report(1) which supported 
the planning proposal to rezone the site at Prestons to permit the development 
of a supermarket and specialty shops. 

 
2. Traffic related matters raised by Council and our comments to these matters 

are set out below:- 
 

Rezoning the development site, as a retail precinct could generate significant 
pedestrian movements across the Camden Valley Way/Corfield Road 
intersection.  This has not been planned for.  Hence, integrated land 
use/transport assessment is required on the suitability of the site for the 
requested rezoning. 
 
The Traffic Report prepared by Colston Budd Hunt & Kafes Pty Ltd includes 
intersection performance analysis of the existing signalised Camden Valley 
Way/Corfield Road intersection.  The intersection performance analysis is 
incomplete.  In accordance with the RMS adopted practice for the assessment 
of major traffic generating developments, the intersection assessment should 

                                              
(1) “Traffic Report for Proposed Shopping Centre, 1975-1985 Camden Valley Way, Prestons”, March 2013, Colston Budd 

Hunt & Kafes Pty Ltd. 
 

mailto:MVolk@empirica.com.au


Colston Budd Hunt & Kafes Pty Ltd 

be carried out assessing traffic conditions, 10 years after the proposed 
rezoning and associated development has been occupied. 
 
Council is currently assessing a DA for the B6 Precinct opposite the proposed 
development site, which includes the construction of a southern leg approach 
to the existing signalised “T” intersection (Refer DA-107/2013), and RMS has 
given in principle support for the southern leg approach.  Hence the 
intersection performance needs to be revised to provide the projected level of 
service and any required attributable improvements to the proposed rezoning, 
for traffic conditions beyond 2023, which include the southern approach, to 
the existing “T” intersection. 
 

3. With regards to pedestrian movements across the intersection of Camden 
Valley Way/Corfield Road, the intersection is a traffic signal controlled T-
intersection, and in accordance with RMS requirements the intersection 
incorporates pedestrian crossing facilities across each approach leg to the 
intersection.  The intersection design allows for a fourth leg (southern 
approach) to be constructed in the future in association with the development 
to the south of Camden Valley Way and the development of a proposed new 
service centre on the south eastern corner of the intersection of Camden 
Valley Way/Corfield Road.  In a letter dated the 18 July 2012 the RMS advised 
that “in principle” approval has been granted to the design of the intersection 
incorporating the fourth leg. 
 

4. The pedestrian facilities at the intersection provide convenient access across 
Camden Valley Way and Corfield Road linking to existing bus stops and public 
transport services on either side of Camden Valley Way.  These pedestrian 
facilities are considered appropriate and will provide convenient pedestrian 
access to and from the site. 
 

5. With regards to the operation of the intersection of Camden Valley Way/ 
Corfield Road, the intersection has been assessed taking into consideration the 
proposed fourth leg onto the intersection and the proposed future 
development to the south of Camden Valley Way, including the development 
of a proposed new service centre on the south eastern corner of the 
intersection. 
 

6. The existing morning and afternoon peak period traffic flows through the 
intersection, including traffic generated by the proposed future development to 
the south of Camden Valley Way (provided by Varga Traffic Planning and 
determined in consultation with RMS) and the proposed development traffic 
generated by the proposed shopping centre, are shown on Figures 1 and 2. 



Colston Budd Hunt & Kafes Pty Ltd 

7. The intersection of Camden Valley Way/Corfield Road has been analysed with 
SIDRA as a four-way intersection for the forecast traffic flows and additional 
development traffic shown in Figures 1 and 2. 
 

8. The SIDRA program simulates the operation of intersections to provide a 
number of performance measures.  The most useful measure provided is 
average delay per vehicle expressed in seconds per vehicle.  Based on average 
delay per vehicle, SIDRA estimates the following levels of service (LOS): 
 
 For traffic signals, the average delay per vehicle in seconds is calculated as 

delay/(all vehicles), for roundabouts the average delay per vehicle in 
seconds is selected for the movement with the highest average delay per 
vehicle, equivalent to the following LOS:- 

 

0 to 14 = “A” Good 
15 to 28 = “B” Good with minimal delays and spare capacity 
29 to 42 = “C” Satisfactory with spare capacity 
43 to 56 = “D” Satisfactory but operating near capacity 
57 to 70 = “E” At capacity and incidents will cause excessive 

delays.  Roundabouts require other control 
mode. 

>70 = "F" Unsatisfactory and requires additional 
capacity 

 

9. The results of the SIDRA analysis are shown in Table 1.  Copies of the SIDRA 
output summaries are appended to this document. 
 

Table 1: SIDRA results for the intersection of Camden Valley Way and Corfield 
Road (Four-Way Intersection) 

 Average Delay 
(sec/veh) 

Level of 
Service 

95th percentile 
queue length 
(vehicles)(1) 

Existing Traffic Flows Plus Development to the South of Camden Valley Way 
- Morning 42.1 D 35.5 
- Afternoon 36.4 C 35.1 

 
Existing Traffic Flows Plus Development to the South of Camden Valley Way and 
the Subject Development Traffic  
- Morning 44.2 D 35.8 
- Afternoon 38.2 C 35.6 

 

(1) 95th percentile queue length (vehicles) for worst approach. 
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10. It can be seen from Table 1, that the four-way intersection with the existing 

traffic flows and the additional development traffic south of Camden Valley 
Way, will operate with average delays of 42.1 seconds per vehicle during the 
morning and 36.4 seconds per vehicle during the afternoon peak periods.  This 
represents levels of service D and C respectively, which are satisfactory levels 
of intersection operation. 
 

11. The SIDRA analysis found that with the subject development traffic the 
intersection would operate with average delays of 44.2 seconds per vehicle 
during the morning and 38.2 seconds per vehicle during the afternoon peak 
periods.  This represents levels of service D and C respectively, which are 
satisfactory levels of intersection operation. 
 

12. To assess the operation of the intersection for 10 years in the future, we have 
increased through traffic flows along Camden Valley Way by two per cent 
compounded for 10 years and added the development traffic on top of this 
growth. 
 

13. With the additional traffic from the proposed development to the south of 
Camden Valley Way and the subject site development traffic, the intersection 
would operate with average delays of 46.7 seconds per vehicle during the 
morning and 40.3 seconds per vehicle during the afternoon peak periods in 10 
years time.  This represents levels of service D and C respectively, which are 
satisfactory levels of intersection operation. 
 

14. Hence, in summary, with the fourth leg, the intersection of Camden Valley 
Way/Corfield Road will operate satisfactorily with traffic from both 
developments both now and in 10 years time. 
 

15. We trust the above provides the additional information you require.  Should 
you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
COLSTON BUDD HUNT & KAFES PTY LTD 
 

 
S. Kafes 
Director 


















